
 

 

      BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING 

12:00 P.M., March 14, 2023 

GHURA’s Main Office (via Zoom) 

1st floor, Conference Room, Sinajana  

AGENDA 

 

I. ROLL CALL 

 

II. BOARD MEETING PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 1st Printing – Tuesday, March 07 2023 
 2nd Printing – Sunday, March 12, 2023 
 
III. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS BOARD MINUTES – February 21, 2023   

 

                                                                                                                   PAGE (S) 

                                                        

IV.     NEW BUSINESS  

1. Resolution No. FY2023-009 ………………………………………………………                 1 

Resolution Commending Ms. Monica O. Guzman, for her dedication 

and Contributions as the Vice-Chairwoman of the GHURA Board of 

Commissioners 

2. Resolution No. FY2023-010 ………………………………………………………                 2 

Resolution Requesting Additional Positions in the Public Housing –  

AMP1 and AMP3 Divisions 

3. Intent to Award ………………………………………………………………………..                 

IFB#GHURA-23-03-CDBG-5TREN; Talofofo Renaissance Concrete 

Repair 

4. Resolution No. FY2023-011 ………………………………………………………             3 - 14 

Resolution Approving the Write-Off Tenant Accounts Receivable 

 

V. CORRESPONDENCE AND REPORTS 

1. Travel Reports  

(Travel for NSPIRE Training, Ref: Minute No. 006/23) 

                  a.  Fernando B. Esteves, Deputy Director …………………………………..          15 - 20 

                  b.  Stephen C. Baza, S8 PCIII ……………………………………………………….          21 - 22 

                  c.  Mike M. Orot, AMP2 Building Maintenance Supervisor …………          23 - 24 

 

VI.   EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

1.  Project Updates 

2. Division Updates                                                                                                                                  



 

 

 VII.   GENERAL DISCUSSION / ANNOUNCEMENTS 

1. HR Item: Executive Management Performance Evaluations for:   

• Executive Director, Elizabeth F. Napoli due on January 08, 2023  

(Initial Evaluation) 

• Deputy Director, Fernando B. Esteves due on February 22, 2023  

   (Initial Evaluation) 

2. Next proposed scheduled Board Meeting:  Tuesday, April 11, 2023 

      @ 12:00 p.m.  

 

VIII.  ADJOURNMENT  

 



GUAM
 DAILY PO

ST • TUESDAY, M
ARCH 7, 2023

19CLASSIFIED

Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
Aturidat Ginima’ Yan Rinueban Siudat Guahan

117 Bien Venida Avenue, Sinajana, GU 96910
Phone: (671) 477-9851 · Fax: (671) 300-7565 · TTY: (671) 472-3701

Website: www.ghura.org
Joshua F. Tenorio

Lieutenant Governor of Guam
Lourdes A. Leon Guerrero

Governor of Guam

GHURA

AGENDA:
I. ROLL CALL
II. BOARD MEETING PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS
III. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS BOARD MINUTES – 
February 21, 2023
IV. NEW BUSINESS

1. Resolution No. FY2023-009; Resolution 
Commending Ms. Monica O. Guzman, for her 
dedication and contributions as the 
Vice-Chairwoman of the GHURA Board of 
Commissioners
2. Resolution No. FY2023-010; Resolution 
Requesting Additional Positions in the Public 
Housing – AMP1 and AMP3 Divisions
3. Intent to Award for 
IFB#GHURA-23-03-CDBG-5TREN; 
Talofofo Renaissance Concrete Repair
4. Resolution No. FY2023-011; Resolution 
Approving the Write-Off Tenant Accounts 
Receivable

V. CORRESPONDENCE AND REPORTS
1. Travel Reports (Travel for NSPIRE Training, Ref: 
Minute No. 006/23)
  a. Fernando B. Esteves, Deputy Director 
  b. Stephen C. Baza, S8 PCIII 
  c. Mike M. Orot, AMP2 Building Maintenance        
      Supervisor

VI. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT
1. Project Updates
2. Division Updates

VII. GENERAL DISCUSSION / ANNOUNCEMENTS
 1. HR Item: Executive Management        
        Performance Evaluations for:

• Executive Director, Elizabeth F. Napoli due 
on January 08, 2023 (Initial Evaluation)
• Deputy Director, Fernando B. Esteves due 
on February 22, 2023 (Initial Evaluation)

  2. Next proposed scheduled Board Meeting –          
       Tuesday, April 11, 2023 @ 12:00 p.m.

VIII. ADJOURNMENT

Board of Commissioners Meeting
Tuesday, March 14, 2023 at 12:00 PM.

This meeting is open to the public via Zoom.
Topic: GHURA BOC Mtg. Tuesday, 3/14/2023
Time: Mar 14, 2023 12:00 PM Guam, Port Moresby
Join Zoom Meeting:
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82972470989?pwd=MlE1ejdNWHpqanJ2WGR5MTRsUTYwdz09
Meeting ID: 829 7247 0989 • Passcode: 556346
Watch YouTube Live Stream: https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCGqKWU0kOmT0FOLYn48ULag

The complete Board packet may be viewed on our website at www.ghura.org.
For more information, please contact Audrey Aguon at 475-1378 and for special accommodations, 

please contact Chief Planner – Designated Section 504 / ADA Coordinator at 475-1322 or TTY 472-3701.
This advertisement was paid for by GHURA.

APPLY NOW!!
4 – ELECTRICIAN WITH 2 YEARS EXPERIENCE                                       $18.41 PER HOUR*
Duties: Plan layout, install and prepare wiring, electrical fixtures, apparatus and control 
equipment for new or modified electrical construction works based on blueprints, sketches, 
and building plans. Prepares sketches to show location of wiring and equipment. Connect 
wires to lighting fixtures, circuit breakers, transformers, power equipment and other 
electrical equipment or systems.  Install control and electrical distribution apparatus such 
as switches, relays, and circuit breaker panels.  Test electrical system for continuity of circuits 
in electrical wiring to equipment or fixtures using texting devices such as ohmmeters, 
voltmeters, or oscilloscopes to ensure electrical compatibility and safety of system. 
Diagnose malfunctioning systems, apparatus, or components, using test equipment and 
hand tools to detect hazards and defects.  Repair and correct faulty equipment or electrical 
systems.  Install ground leads and connect power cables to equipment.

*Special Wage Rate: Work to be performed on DPRI-funded projects will be paid no less 
than the indicated wage rate, but may be paid more where special Davis-Bacon Act rates 
apply.

Successful applicant must be able to obtain military base access. Off-island hires must 
complete a health screening prior to working in Guam.

BENEFITS: Round trip airfare for off-island hire; Meals and lodging provided at 
$80.00/week; Local transportation from employer’s designated housing facility to/from 
jobsite; and employer/employee-paid medical insurance provided.

The job offer meets all EEO requirements, and initiates a temporary placement. The 
recruitment associated with this job offer is closely monitored by the Department of Labor. 
Qualified, available and willing U.S. workers are highly encouraged to apply.  Should you 
qualify for the job and are not hired, you may appeal with the Department of Labor who will 
independently review matter.

Apply in person at the American Job Center
414 W. Soledad Avenue, Suite 300 GCIC Building Hagatna, Guam

Or apply online at www.hireguam.com; Enter Keyword: 2023-035

Guam CAHA Regular Board of Directors Meeting

1. Call to order

2. Attendance

3. Approval of minutes - Nov. 
Feb 

4. Financial Report

5. Executive Director's Report 

6. Old business

7. Mariana Islands Int. Folk 
Festival

8. FY24 Budget

9. Ratify approval of 
expenditures

10. Percent for the arts update

11. Hilton fundraiser report

12. New Business

13. Board Resolutions 

14. Revolving Fund 

15. NIPA programing budget

16. MIIDAF, w/NEA, NEH

17. Election of new board 
officers

18. Annual Gala/ Magahaga 
Award

Core Tech Foundation, Inc.
Statement of Financial Position

As of December 31, 2022

Assets
Cash                    
Total Assets                           
 
      Liabilities & Fund Balance 
Total Net Assets         

Statement of Revenues / Expenditures 
and  Change in Fund Balance

For the year ended December 31, 2022

Contributions    
Deductions / Expenditures   
Net change in fund balance 

$     48,000
       48,098
$            (98) 

$    1,475
       1,475

$     1,475  

Submitted by Conchita Bathan, Director
388 South Marine Corps Drive, Ste 400

Tamuning Guam, 96913



GUAM
 DAILY PO

ST • SUNDAY, M
ARCH 12, 2023

21CLASSIFIEDS

Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
Aturidat Ginima’ Yan Rinueban Siudat Guahan

117 Bien Venida Avenue, Sinajana, GU 96910
Phone: (671) 477-9851 · Fax: (671) 300-7565 · TTY: (671) 472-3701

Website: www.ghura.org
Joshua F. Tenorio

Lieutenant Governor of Guam
Lourdes A. Leon Guerrero

Governor of Guam

GHURA

AGENDA:
I. ROLL CALL
II. BOARD MEETING PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS
III. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS BOARD MINUTES – 
February 21, 2023
IV. NEW BUSINESS

1. Resolution No. FY2023-009; Resolution 
Commending Ms. Monica O. Guzman, for her 
dedication and contributions as the 
Vice-Chairwoman of the GHURA Board of 
Commissioners
2. Resolution No. FY2023-010; Resolution 
Requesting Additional Positions in the Public 
Housing – AMP1 and AMP3 Divisions
3. Intent to Award for 
IFB#GHURA-23-03-CDBG-5TREN; 
Talofofo Renaissance Concrete Repair
4. Resolution No. FY2023-011; Resolution 
Approving the Write-Off Tenant Accounts 
Receivable

V. CORRESPONDENCE AND REPORTS
1. Travel Reports (Travel for NSPIRE Training, Ref: 
Minute No. 006/23)
  a. Fernando B. Esteves, Deputy Director 
  b. Stephen C. Baza, S8 PCIII 
  c. Mike M. Orot, AMP2 Building Maintenance        
      Supervisor

VI. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT
1. Project Updates
2. Division Updates

VII. GENERAL DISCUSSION / ANNOUNCEMENTS
 1. HR Item: Executive Management        
        Performance Evaluations for:

• Executive Director, Elizabeth F. Napoli due 
on January 08, 2023 (Initial Evaluation)
• Deputy Director, Fernando B. Esteves due 
on February 22, 2023 (Initial Evaluation)

  2. Next proposed scheduled Board Meeting –          
       Tuesday, April 11, 2023 @ 12:00 p.m.

VIII. ADJOURNMENT

Board of Commissioners Meeting
Tuesday, March 14, 2023 at 12:00 PM.

This meeting is open to the public via Zoom.
Topic: GHURA BOC Mtg. Tuesday, 3/14/2023
Time: Mar 14, 2023 12:00 PM Guam, Port Moresby
Join Zoom Meeting:
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82972470989?pwd=MlE1ejdNWHpqanJ2WGR5MTRsUTYwdz09
Meeting ID: 829 7247 0989 • Passcode: 556346
Watch YouTube Live Stream: https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCGqKWU0kOmT0FOLYn48ULag

The complete Board packet may be viewed on our website at www.ghura.org.
For more information, please contact Audrey Aguon at 475-1378 and for special accommodations, 

please contact Chief Planner – Designated Section 504 / ADA Coordinator at 475-1322 or TTY 472-3701.
This advertisement was paid for by GHURA.

JOB ANNOUNCEMENT FOR TEMPORARY POSITIONS 
Opening for A/C Mechanic w/Meilbert De Vera Lopez dba Northern Construction in Yigo, GU.  Min Reqs: 

Two (2) yrs of exp as an A/C Mechanic.  Installs, services, troubleshoots, and repairs air conditioning and 
refrigeration systems and equipment utilizing knowledge of refrigeration theory, pipe fitting, and 

structural layout. Performs wk @ co’s job sites on GU.  
Send CV to P.O. Box 11831, Yigo, GU 96929 or email to mlopez.nci@guam.net. Verif of qualifs req. 

PUBLIC NOTICE

JOB ANNOUNCEMENT
INFRASTRUCTURE ENGINEER I: Bachelor degree in Electrical Engineering 
(may be foreign equivalent). 48 months experience as Telecommunications 
Engineer. Install, configure, and monitor servers, networking equipment, 
and storage arrays. Monitor, maintain, and validate backup solutions. 
Deploy and configure VMWare, Linux, and Windows operating systems.

IP NETWORK ENGINEERS III: Bachelor’s degree in Electrical Engineering or 
Information Technology (may be foreign equivalent). 48 months experience 
as Telecommunications Engineer. Create new designs for the deployment of 
new technologies. Solve technical network issues and proactively find 
network faults. Test, validate, document, and integrate new technologies in 
a laboratory environment.

Send resume to:
TELEGUAM HOLDINGS, LLC dba GTA

Attn: Human Resources
624 North Marine Corps Drive, Tamuning, Guam 96913

PUBLIC NOTICE

JOB ANNOUNCEMENT
STORE MANAGER: Bachelor degree in Commerce or Accounting (may be foreign equivalent). 24 
months experience in Store Management. Manages and oversees daily store operation and 
representations, as well as briefing Supervisors and Sales Associates their daily task. Monitor and 
evaluates employee's performance with appraising, counselling and disciplining if needed.

Send resume to:
THE ATHLETE’S FOOT OF SAIPAN, INC

Attn: Human Resources
P.O. BOX 500137, SAIPAN, MP 96950

Attorneys for Administrator
Roland Albert C. Baza

IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF GUAM

Estates of Jesus Cabrera Baza,
Antonio Pablo Baza and Carmen P. Baza,

(husband and wife)
Roke Pablo Baza and Maria Camacho Baza,
(husband and wife) and Jolm Larry Baza, 

Decedents.

PROBATE CASE NO. PRO170-22

NOTICE TO CREDITORS

 Within sixty (60) calendar days of the first 
publication of this Notice, creditors of the 
Decedents above, and all persons having claims 
against the Estate or against Decedents, must 
either file their claims with the necessary 
supporting documents with the Clerk of the 
Superior Court of Guam, or present their claims to 
the Administrator or his attorneys, Roberts Fowler 
& Visosky LLP, 865 South Marine Corps Drive, Suite 
201, Tamuning, Guam 96913.

   Date: January 26, 2023

ROBERTS FOWLER & VISOSKY LLP
JON A. VISOSKY

Attorneys for Administrator
Roland Albert C. Baza

IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF GUAM
TERRITORY OF GUAM

IN THE MATTER OF THE ESTATE 
OF

CARMELITA A. CHARGUALAF,
Deceased.

PROBATE CASE NO. PR0009-23
NOTICE OF HEARING PETITION FOR 

PROBATE OF WILL and LETTERS 
TESTAMENTARY 

IN PERSON HEARING
THIS NOTICE IS REQUIRED BY LAW.  YOU ARE 
NOT REQUIRED TO APPEAR IN COURT UNLESS 

YOU DESIRE.
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that 

JOAQUIN C. ARRIOLA, has filed herein his 
Petition for Probate of Will and Letters 
Testamentary in the Estate of CARMELITA A. 
CHARGUALAF, and that on MARCH 23, 
2023, at 9:30 am, before the Honorable Judge 
DANA A. GUTIERREZ in the Superior Court of 
Guam, 120 W. O’Brien Drive, Hagatna, Guam 
has been set for the hearing of said Petition, and 
all persons interested are hereby notified to 
appear at the time and place set for said hearing 
and show cause if any they have why the Petition 
should not be granted. Reference is hereby made 
to said Petition for further particulars.

Dated: February 13, 2023

SOPHIA S. DIAZ, 
Clerk of Court 

/s/ PAULINE I. UNTALAN, 
Chamber/Courtroom Clerk 

ANITA P. ARRIOLA, ESQ.
ARRIOLA LAW FIRM
259 MARTYR STREET, SUITE 201
P.O. BOX X, HAGÅTÑA, GUAM 96932
TEL: (671) 477-9730/33
FAX: (671) 477-9734
Email: aarriola@arriolafirm.com
Counsel for Petitioner JOAQUIN C. ARRIOLA, JR.

FOR RENT

CALL (671) 477-4239
OR (671) 788-1119

MAITE APARTMENT
3 BR 1 BA SEC 8 0K

NEW RENO 
INCL. APPL.

HOUSE FOR RENT
3 BD, 2BA - LATTE PLANT

$2,200/MO.
671-486-7324

SEMI-FURNISHED, INCL PWR & WTR



Page 1 of 6 
 

      BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING 

12:00 P.M., February 21, 2023 

GHURA’s Main Office (via Zoom) 

1st floor, Conference Room, Sinajana  

AGENDA 

 

I. ROLL CALL 

 After notice was duly given, pursuant to the Open Government Law of Guam and the                                       

 Bylaws of the Authority, the Board of Commissioners’ regularly scheduled board meeting was 

 called to order at 12:08 P.M., Tuesday, February 21, 2023, at the GHURA Sinajana Main Office, 

 1st floor Conference room, by Chairman Rivera. He indicated that 5 members of the Board of 

 Commissioners were present, representing a quorum and that the meeting would proceed as 

 scheduled. 

 
PRESENT: 
Dr. John Rivera, Chairman  
Anisia Delia, Commissioner (Attended 
via Zoom) 
Nate Sanchez, Commissioner  
Emilia Rice, Commissioner  
Karl Corpus, Resident Commissioner 
(Attended via Zoom. Approved by 
Chairman Rivera via email.) 
 
ABSENT: 
Monica Guzman, Vice Chairwoman  
Frank Ishizaki, Commissioner  
 
LEGAL COUNSEL: 
None present 

 
MANAGEMENT & STAFF: 
Elizabeth Napoli, Executive Director  
Fernando Esteves, Deputy Director 
Audrey Aguon, Special Assistant 
Frances Danieli, Fiscal Controller 
Sonny Perez, AE Manager 
Dr. Kimberly Bersamin, HR 
Administrator 
Katherine Taitano, CDBG Manager 
Norma San Nicolas, Section 8 
Administrator 
Nicole Alejandro, Section 8 staff 
 
PUBLIC:  
Destiny Cruz 
 

 

II. BOARD MEETING PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 1st Printing – Tuesday, February 14, 2023 
 2nd Printing – Sunday, February 19, 2023 
 ACKNOWLEDGED by Chairman Rivera 
 
III. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS BOARD MINUTES – January 24, 2023   

[016/23] Commissioner Sanchez moved to approve the board meeting minutes of 

January 24, 2023, subject to corrections. Commissioner Rice seconded the motion. 

There were no objections by the other board members. Motion passed, subject to any 

corrections.  

 

                                                                                                                    



Page 2 of 6 
 

IV.    NEW BUSINESS  

1. Resolution No. FY2023-008  

Resolution Approving Above-Step Recruitment for a Program Coordinator III 

Position (Section 8 Division) 

[017/23] Executive Director Napoli read aloud Resolution No. FY2023-08, 

approving Above-Step Recruitment for the Program Coordinator III position 

for Ms. Nicole R. Alejandro, at the Section 8 Division. A hard copy of 

Resolution No. FY2023-08 was included in the board packet, pg. 1 of 24. 

 

Chairman Rivera inquired about the duration of the temporary hire Program 

Coordinator II position. Dr. Kimberly Bersamin, HR Administrator, indicated that 

she believed that the duration of the temporary hire was six months. She added 

that within the six-month period, Ms. Nicole Alejandro was able to obligate funds 

that were at risk and GHURA would like to keep the talent that Ms. Alejandro has 

exhibited. She added that Ms. Alejandro also comes at an ideal time as succession 

planning will be underway. Dr. Bersamin respectfully requested that the board 

approve the Above-Step recruitment of Ms. Nicole R. Alejandro.  

 

Commissioner Rice inquired about whether GHURA plans on bringing on more 

positions to assist with the workflow since there are potential retirees. Dr. 

Bersamin indicated that GHURA does have a succession plan in place to step up the 

recruitment process, start the cross-training, and grow the talent from within the 

authority.  

Chairman Rivera recommended that GHURA look into its succession planning from 

a holistic perspective and revisit its wage scale in order to attract talent, keep talent 

that is here at GHURA, and give HR the room to create a succession pathway sooner 

than later. Dr. Bersamin indicated that she and the rest of the strategy team will be 

meeting to brainstorm ideas and then report before the board at a later time.  

There were no further discussions. 

 

[018/23] Commissioner Rice moved to approve Resolution No. FY2023-008, a 

resolution approving the Above-Step recruitment for the Program 

Coordinator III position, Section 8 Division. Commissioner Sanchez seconded 

the motion. There were no objections by the other board members. The 

motion passed unanimously.  

 

2. Intent to Award  

IFB#GHURA-23-05-MOD7-AMP1; Renovation of Seven (7) Public Housing Units 

[019/23] Executive Director Napoli stated the following: 

• Bid opening for the subject project was held on January 27, 2023 at 2PM 

• A total of (2) contractors purchased a set of bed specifications for which 

both submitted a bid. 



Page 3 of 6 
 

• Results of the bid submissions were opened read aloud: 

1. Genesis Tech Corp., with a bid bond of 15% and Base Bid #1 at 

$223,000. 

2. OH Construction, with a bid bond of 15% and Base Bid of $235,000. 

3. Government estimate was at $255,350. 

• The intent of the project is to modernize units as per scope of work: 

o Base Bid #1- consists of (7) vacant units at the AMP1 side; of the (7) 

vacant units, (1) unit in Mongmong, (3) units in Sinjana, (2) Asan and 

(1) in Agana Heights. Detailed scope of work on modernization was 

included in the bid documents in the BOC packet for board review. 

• Genesis Tech Corp. provided the lowest responsive and responsible bid and 

is in good standing. 

• Genesis Tech Corp. had been cleared by the Department of Labor 

Compliance, OSHA, and EPLS Debarred list. (Verification attached) 

• Based on AE staff’s review and determination, GHURA requested board 

approval to issue the contract to Genesis Tech Corp. in the total amount of 

$223,000. 

• Funding is available under the Capital Funds Program. 

Chairman Rivera inquired about the project’s completion date. Mr. Sonny Perez, AE Manager, 

indicated that Mod project completions usually range anywhere from 120-160 days, 

depending on the number of units and the complexity of the job. He added that he would 

confirm the information and report back to the board. He also indicated that the challenges 

that the contractors and GHURA has dealt with in the past 6-8 months have included 

resource issues and weather delays. Chairman Rivera expressed his concerns with timeliness 

issues. There were no further discussions. 

[020/23] Commissioner Rice moved to approve the Intent of Award, 

IFB#GHURA-23-05-MOD7-AMP1, Renovation of (7) public housing units. 

Commissioner Sanchez seconded the motion. The motion passed 

unanimously.  

 

3. Change Order No. 1 IFB#GHURA-08-26-2021-HOME; Design-Build & Construction 

of Two New Homes in Agat & Dededo 

[021/23] Executive Director Napoli stated the following: 

• Design for a Notice to Proceed (NTP) commenced on 2/14/2022 

• Construction commenced on June 30, 2022 to completion on February 25, 

2023 (240 days) 

• Progress percentage- 60% 

• Genesis Tech Corp. is currently contracted for the design-build and 

construction of (2) new homes in Agat and Dededo. 

• AE staff and contractor conducted a site inspection at L12 Bb T240 

Astumbo, Chalan Panao, Dededo and discovered the actual topographic of 



Page 4 of 6 
 

the site differs from the bid documents sketch provided, which shows the 

new building pad to be 4 ft. above the existing grade. 

• The actual survey topographic consisted of a greater slope of (8) feet above 

the existing grade 

• Cost Analysis and Justification: Original contract amount-$650,000 

a) Materials Costs: $25,293.00 

o Compacted backfill interior and exterior of building…..450CY 

o 8x8x16 CMU blocks….827 pcs. 

o CMU Grout (3000psi) ….6.5 CY 

o #5 Rebars….0.5 ton 

o Form work material….1 Lot 

o Exterior Plaster and 2 coat painting….1 Lot 

b) Labor Costs: $10,900 

c) Time Extension: additional 90 days 

1. Time extension based on (2) matters: Additional work to correct 

the discovered site conditions and;  

2. Inclement weather experienced between November 2022 and 

January 2023. Work involved is 45 days. 

 

• Based on AE staff’s review, GHURA is requesting board approval for a 

change order/contract modification with Genesis Tech. Corp. in the amount 

of $36,193.00 for the additional work.  

• AE staff has determined that the proposals are reasonable and acceptable. 

 

Chairman Rivera inquired about the conditions that may trigger a professional site 

inspection. Mr. Sonny Perez, AE manager, indicated that the AE staff had done visual 

inspections, as they had done in the past, but a professional land surveyor should have been 

on board. Chairman Rivera inquired about what GHURA is doing to mitigate issues of 

inclement weather. Mr. Sonny Perez indicated that as part of AE’s new policy, more site visits 

to document site conditions are being conducted. Also in discussions, are more updates to 

the AE policy such as the addition of allowances for weather delays into contracts. Chairman 

Rivera thanked Mr. Perez for his proactiveness in correcting policies and ensuring that 

GHURA mitigate future issues.  

  

Commissioner Rice inquired about the contractor’s surveyor’s findings and why GHURA was 

not able to capture the difference in elevation from the surveyor’s report. Mr. Sonny Perez 

indicated that the elevation was covered by shrubbery, trees, and bushes and that GHURA 

missed the actual elevation due to it being hidden. He added that the contractor had brought 

in a land surveyor to confirm the difference in elevation of about four feet. He indicated that 

he was not aware of whether the land surveyor prepared a report as he had not seen a 

report.  

 



Page 5 of 6 
 

Commissioner Sanchez inquired about the steps that GHURA has take to ensure that 

contractors are showing up to project sites. Mr. Perez stated that Mr. Miguel Fernandez 

conducts inspections at the project sites, including MOD sites, documenting the project 

progress, the number of workers on-site, and also documenting the weather patterns daily.  

 

[022/23] Commissioner Sanchez motioned to approve Change Order No. 1 

IFB#GHURA-08-26-2021-HOME; Design-Build & Construction of Two New 

Homes in Agat & Dededo to Genesis Tech in the amount of $36, 193.00. 

Commissioner Rice seconded the motion. There were no objections. The 

motion passed unanimously.  

 

4. Notice of Award  

Small Purchase of Professional Services GH12-14-22  

[023/23] Executive Director Napoli stated the following: 

• Corrected Item #4 to read Notice of Intent to Award, instead of Notice of 

Award 

• This item was to keep the board apprised of GHURA’s efforts at hiring Legal 

Representation.  

• GHURA intends to Award Professional Services Small Purchase GH12-14-44 

to McDonald Law Office. 

• As previously reported, GHURA has been working to obtain Legal Services 

• Draft Professional Services Agreement has undergone review by the OAG 

• Final Professional Services Agreement is subject to final review; GHURA 

anticipates a reasonable turnaround time 

• This is intended to bridge GHURA’s current needs toward long term 

solutions. 

There were no further discussions.  

 

V.   EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

1.  Project Updates 

[024/23] Executive Director Napoli stated the following: 

• Requested to table the Executive Director’s Report to the next scheduled 

board meeting.  

• Informed Commissioners about the upcoming Ground Breaking Ceremony for 

the Summer Vista I at Dos Amantes, Dededo.  

• Deputy Director Esteves will report on the NSPIRE training that he attended 

with (2) other GHURA staff members at the next scheduled board meeting. 

 

 



Page 6 of 6 
 

2. Division Updates- None was reported. 

 

 VI.   GENERAL DISCUSSION / ANNOUNCEMENTS 

            

1. HR Item: Executive Management Performance Evaluations for:   

 [025/23] Dr. Bersamin stated the following: 

• A courtesy reminder that the evaluations are due for the Executive Director on January 

8, 2023, and February 22, 2023 for the Deputy Director. 

• Only one evaluation was submitted. 

• Once all evaluations are submitted, she will report back to the board. 

 

2. Next proposed scheduled Board Meeting:  Tuesday, March 14, 2023 

      @ 12:00 p.m.  

[026/23] Chairman Rivera indicated that Ms. Audrey Aguon, Special Assistant, 

will send out notices to commissioners via email regarding a consensus on the 

next scheduled board meeting date. 

Chairman Rivera asked that in honor of the death anniversary of the late 

Executive Director, Ray Topasna, that as we remember him may we keep him 

and his family in our prayers. May we be mindful of the blessings that we have 

and all the good things that we do for the people in the community.  

 

 

VII.  ADJOURNMENT  

 
[027/23] Commissioner Rice motioned to adjourn. Commissioner Sanchez 
seconded with no objections by other board members. Motion passed to adjourn 
the meeting at 1:01PM.  

 
 



GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

RESOLUTION NO. FY2023-009 

 

Moved by:   Seconded by:     
 

RESOLUTION COMMENDING MS. MONICA O. GUZMAN, FOR HER DEDICATION AND 
CONTRIBUTIONS AS THE VICE-CHAIRWOMAN OF THE GHURA BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS  

 
WHEREAS, Ms. Monica O. Guzman was appointed by Governor Lou Leon Guerrero in February 2019 to 

serve as Vice-Chairwoman of the GHURA Board of Commissioners; and 
 
WHEREAS, throughout her four- year tenure, from February 2019 to February 2023, Ms. Guzman 

exemplified and maintained a high standard of professionalism and integrity; and  
 
WHEREAS, in executing her official duties and responsibilities as the Board’s Vice-Chairwoman, Ms. 

Guzman had a direct and positive impact toward ensuring that both programs and projects 
directly benefited the community of Guam and our GHURA families; and 

 
WHEREAS,  Ms.  Guzman contributed positively to the lives and successes of thousands upon thousands of 

island residents under her leadership; and  
 
WHEREAS, in her four-year tenure, Ms. Guzman’s leadership and accomplishments are highlighted below: 

• Presided over GHURA’s Board meetings with the utmost professionalism. 

• Supported GHURA’s activities such as ground breaking, ribbon cutting, and other 

GHURA events in her official capacity. 
 
WHEREAS, the Employees, Executive Management, Executive Team and her fellow GHURA 

Commissioners extend their collective recognition and gratitude to Ms. Monica O. Guzman, 
commending her for a successful tenure as GHURA Vice Chairwoman of the Board, and bid 
her best wishes on her future endeavors; and now, therefore, be it 

 
RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners unanimously vote to express profound appreciation and 

gratitude to Ms. Guzman for her public service on the Board of Commissioners of the Guam 
Housing and Urban Renewal Authority, and whereby, a copy shall be provided to the 
Governor of Guam, Speaker of the Guam Legislature, and Legislative Committee overseeing 
the Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority. 

 
IN REGULAR BOARD MEETING, SINAJANA, GUAM – MARCH 14, 2023 
PASSED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTES: 

AYES:     
NAYS:        
ABSENT:        

ABSTAINED:         

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, 

and correct copy of a Resolution duly adopted by 

the Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority 

Board of Commissioners on March 14, 2023. 

 

(SEAL)                                                                       ________________________________ 

ELIZABETH F. NAPOLI 

                                                                                    Secretary / Executive Director  

 
Board Meeting of March 14, 2023

 
PAGE 1 of 24



GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

RESOLUTION NO. FY2023-010 

 

Moved By:        Seconded By:       

RESOLUTION REQUESTING ADDITIONAL POSITIONS IN THE PUBLIC HOUSING – AMP #1 AND AMP#3 

DIVISIONS    

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 5104, Title 12 of the Guam Code Annotated, the Board of Commissioners of the Guam 

Housing and Urban Renewal Authority (GHURA), is given the right and responsibility to govern and control 

the operations of the Authority, and to establish policies for its day-to-day operations, and generally to 

undertake its responsibilities as supreme authority for the Agency; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of GHURA is empowered to employ officers, technical experts, agents and 

employees, permanent and temporary, as it may deem necessary to carry out the responsibilities of the 

Authority and is subject to the New Uniform Position Classification and Salary Administration Plan of the 

Authority; and 

 

WHEREAS, Executive management supports Public Housing AMP#1 and Public Housing AMP#3 Division’s requests for 

additional positions to help bring up their monthly occupancy numbers and to expand workforce capabilities 

to meet evolving workloads; and   

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners wishes to follow GHURA’s Organization Plan as adopted for fiscal year 2023 

and recognizes the need for additional positions in the Public Housing AMP#1 and Public Housing AMP#3 

Divisions as follows; 

     

    AMP#1 – Interviewer Clerk– GG4-1(A), $24,587.00 p/a (1 position);  

    AMP#3 - Clerk I -CG4-1(A), $19,873.00 p/a (1 position); 

                  - Interviewer Clerk – GG4-1(A), $24,587.00 p/a (1 position); 

                  - Maintenance Worker – HM3-1(A), $33,315,00 p/a (1 position) 

       

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners approved all positions under the FY2023 Administrative Operating Budget; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners wish to approve these additional positions in the Public Housing AMP#1 and 

AMP#3 Divisions, respectively, to meet their program demands; 

 

WHEREAS, the funding for this position is available under Public Housing – AMP#1 and AMP#3 Funds; and now, 

therefore, be it  

 

RESOLVED, that the classification rate for said positions is established at their respective pay ranges indicated above, in 

conformance with GHURA’s wage structure and benefits provided to our employees, which include 

retirement benefits, group insurance (Health and Life), worker’s compensation, annual leave and sick leave 

benefits. 

 

IN A SCHEDULED BOARD MEETING, AGANA, GUAM – MARCH 14, 2023 

PASSED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTES: 

AYES:   

NAYES:  

ABSENT:  

ABSTAINED:  

 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of a 

Resolution duly adopted by the Guam Housing and Urban Renewal 

Board of Commissioners on March 14, 2023. 

 

            

(S E A L)     ELIZABETH F. NAPOLI 

Secretary/Executive Director 

 
Board Meeting of March 14, 2023

 
PAGE 2 of 24



GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY 

Aturidat Ginima’ Yan Rinueban Siudat Guahan 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

RESOLUTION NO. FY2023-011 

 

 

Moved By:       Seconded By:   

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE WRITE-OFF OF TENANT ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE. 

 

WHEREAS, the Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority (GHURA) is the Guam public housing authority that provides 

decent homes and suitable living environments for Guam families of low income to afford to pay for safe, 

sanitary and decent dwelling accommodations; and  

 

WHEREAS, the governance and well-being of GHURA is vested in the Board of Commissioners (BOC) and empowered 

by 12 Guam Code Annotated, Chapter 5, Section 5104; and  

 

WHEREAS, BOC Resolution No. FY2018-002 Resolution Adopting the Write-Off Policy for Uncollectible Accounts for 

GHURA Rental Properties; and 

 

WHEREAS, in the normal course of business, the Authority is involved in transactions that result in monies being owed to 

GHURA for which they are unable to collect, and as necessary,  

 

WHEREAS, the Property Site Managers submit summaries of debts considered for write-off to prevent overstating of assets 

which are affecting the Authority’s financial performance; and 

 

WHEREAS, currently, GHURA's receivables include outstanding accounts, which have remained in GHURA's books for 

over 90 days as of December 31, 2022, as indicated below; and 

 

Property Site Write-Off Amount 

AMP 1  $  9,594.63 
AMP 2  $     951.41 
AMP 3  $  9,006.85 
AMP 4  $38,051.85 

      GT    $     476.35 

   $58,081.09 
 

WHEREAS, GHURA, through the Property Site Managers, exert diligent collection efforts in pursuit of outstanding 

receivables, and although ongoing collection efforts are abandoned on these accounts, GHURA reserves the 

right and duty to collect should the opportunity arise; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is in accordance with GHURA's procedure and good business practices to write-off accounts receivables 

after all reasonable collection procedures have been exhausted and there is not a reasonable expectation that 

the accounts will be collected; now, therefore be it  

 

RESOLVED, that the BOC approves writing off $58,081.09 of GHURA receivables after all reasonable collection procedures 

have been exhausted and there is not a reasonable expectation that the accounts will be collected. 

 

IN A SCHEDULED BOARD MEETING, SINAJANA, GUAM – MARCH 14, 2023 
PASSED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTES: 
AYES: 
NAYS: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAINED: 

                                                                                                  
                                                                                                 I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true and correct copy 
                                                                                                of a Resolution duly adopted by the Guam Housing and Urban 

Renewal Authority Board of Commissioners on March 14, 2023. 
 
(S E A L) 

                                                                                _________________________________________ 
                                      ELIZABETH F. NAPOLI 

                                                                                                    Board Secretary / Executive Director  

 
Board Meeting of March 14, 2023

 
PAGE 3 of 24



 
Board Meeting of March 14, 2023

 
PAGE 4 of 24



 
Board Meeting of March 14, 2023

 
PAGE 5 of 24



 
Board Meeting of March 14, 2023

 
PAGE 6 of 24



 
Board Meeting of March 14, 2023

 
PAGE 7 of 24



 
Board Meeting of March 14, 2023

 
PAGE 8 of 24



 
Board Meeting of March 14, 2023

 
PAGE 9 of 24



 
Board Meeting of March 14, 2023

 
PAGE 10 of 24



 
Board Meeting of March 14, 2023

 
PAGE 11 of 24



 
Board Meeting of March 14, 2023

 
PAGE 12 of 24



 
Board Meeting of March 14, 2023

 
PAGE 13 of 24



 
Board Meeting of March 14, 2023

 
PAGE 14 of 24



 
Board Meeting of March 14, 2023

 
PAGE 15 of 24



 
Board Meeting of March 14, 2023

 
PAGE 16 of 24



 
Board Meeting of March 14, 2023

 
PAGE 17 of 24



 
Board Meeting of March 14, 2023

 
PAGE 18 of 24



 
Board Meeting of March 14, 2023

 
PAGE 19 of 24



 
Board Meeting of March 14, 2023

 
PAGE 20 of 24



 
Board Meeting of March 14, 2023

 
PAGE 21 of 24



 
Board Meeting of March 14, 2023

 
PAGE 22 of 24



 
Board Meeting of March 14, 2023

 
PAGE 23 of 24



 
Board Meeting of March 14, 2023

 
PAGE 24 of 24




